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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL 

To: Mayor and Councillors ("the Shareholder") 

From: Gary Collinge 
Chair of the Board of Directors 
Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

Memorandum 

Date: May 13, 2024 

Re: Notice to the Shareholder of the 2024 AGM of Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

Attached herein are the agenda items for the AGM of the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
to be held on June 3, 2024 at a Special meeting of Council at the Richmond City Hall. 

Appendix A Notice of AGM, to be sent at least 10 days prior to the AGM to: 
• the City;
• each member of the Board; and
• the auditors

Appendix B 2023 Audited Financial Statements 

Appendix C Consent Resolutions of the Shareholder, consenting to the 
resolutions required to be passed at the AGM, including: 

• The appointment of Directors
• The appointment of Auditors

Appendix D Notice of Appointment of Auditor 

Appendix E 2023 Annual Report 

Gary Collinge 
Chair of the Board of Directors 
Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

/ii 
Atta: 

CNCL - 5 
(Special)



Notice of Annual General Meeting 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholder of: 

Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

(the "Corporation") 

Appendix A 

will be held on June 3, 2024 at a Special Meeting of Council at the Richmond City Hall, 6911 No. 3 Road, 

Richmond, British Columbia for the following purposes: 

1. to acknowledge and confirm previous receipt of the audited financial statements of the Corporation

for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 and the report of the auditors thereon;

2. to elect directors to the board of directors of the Corporation (the "Board");

3. to appoint auditors of the Corporation for the 2024 fiscal year and to authorize the Board to fix the

auditors' remuneration;

4. to acknowledge and confirm receipt of the Corporation's 2023 Annual Report; and

5. to transact such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting.

The board of directors of the Corporation has fixed the close of business on June 3, 2024 as the record 

date for determining the names of the shareholders who are entitled to vote at the meeting. 

The audited financial statements of the Corporation for the period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 

2023 and the report of the auditors thereon are attached to this Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

Dated this 13th day of May, 2024 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Board Chair 
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Financial Statements of 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL 

CORPORATION 

And Independent Auditor's Report thereon 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

Appendix B 
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KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1 K3 
Canada 
Telephone 604 691 3000 
Fax 604 691 3031 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Shareholder of Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation (the "Corporation"), which 
comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023 

• the statement of operations for the year then ended 

• the statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion , the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2023, and its results of operations, its changes in net financial 

assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements" section of our auditor's report. 

We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion . 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises: 

• the information, other than the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon, included in the 2023 
annual report. 

KPlvlG LLP , an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of mdependent member firms affiliated 
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee l<PMG Canada provides services lo KPMG LLP. 
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Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
Page 2 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit and remain alert for indications that the other 
information appears to be materially misstated. 

We obtained the information, other than the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon, included in 
the 2023 annual report as at the date of this auditor's report. 

If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditor's report. 

We have nothing to report in this regard . 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
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Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
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We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion , forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern . If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going 
concern . 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether these financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding , among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, Canada 
April 24, 2024 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 

Financial Assets 

Cash 
Investments (note 4) 
Accounts and other receivable 
Due from City of Richmond (note 5) 
Inventories held for resale 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Post-employment benefits (note 7) 
Deferred revenue (note 8) 
Rental deposits 

Net financial assets 

Non-Financial Assets 

Tangible capital assets (note 9) 
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 

Economic dependence (note 14) 

Accumulated surplus (note 10) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Approved on behalf of the Board: 

Director 

$ 

2023 

1,122,442 
14,850,000 

1,009,382 
118,603 
185,275 

17,285,702 

1,430,334 
1,185,300 
8,132,049 

11,781 

10,759,464 

6,526,238 

14,582,577 
362,771 

14,945,348 

$ 

2022 

1,743,783 
14,206,580 

595,183 
16,968 

160,232 

16,722,746 

2,266,613 
900,458 

8,578,270 
7,373 

11,752,714 

4,970,032 

14,327,807 
196,972 

14,524,779 

$ 21,471,586 $ 19,494,811 

Director 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Operations 

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 

2023 Budget 2023 2022 
(Note 2(h)) 

Revenue: 
2010 Games Operating Trust Fund (note 6) $ 3,725,000 $ 4,136,315 $ 4,212,071 
Contribution from City of Richmond (note 12(a)) 3,903,713 3,903,713 3,754,292 
Memberships, admissions and programs 8,379,797 10,150,651 8,048,501 
Other revenue (note 16) 2,405,931 2,986,657 1,556,569 

18,414,441 21,177,336 17,571,433 

Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 11,128,078 12,045,966 10,396,266 
Utilities 1,002,316 1,045,226 954,149 
Amortization 2,500,000 1,728,852 1,782,243 
Supplies and equipment 1,030,579 1,001,330 863,286 
Insurance 740,400 697,986 620,064 
General and administration 883,347 808,350 827,767 
Marketing 156,388 156,995 162,782 
Program services 1,142,599 1,572,920 1,188,153 
Professional fees 57,560 142,936 49,537 

18,641,267 19,200,561 16,844,247 

Annual surplus (deficit) (226,826) 1,976,775 727,186 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 19,494,811 19,494,811 18,767,625 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $19,267,985 $ 21,471,586 $ 19,494,811 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 

2023 Budget 2023 2022 
(Note 2(h)} 

Annual surplus (deficit), for the year $ (226,826) $ 1,976,775 $ 727,186 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,205,000) (1,983,622) (3,966,248) 
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets 1,609 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 809 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,500,000 1,728,852 1,782,243 

295,000 (254,770) (2,181,587) 

Acquisition of prepaid expenses and other deposits (1,174,182) (415,822) 
Use of prepaid expenses and other deposits 1,008,383 921,150 

Change in net financial assets 68,174 1,556,206 (949,073) 

Net financial assets, beginning of year 4,970,032 4,970,032 5,919,105 

Net financial assets, end of year $ 5,038,206 $ 6,526,238 $ 4,970,032 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 

2023 2022 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Annual surplus $ 1,976,775 $ 727,186 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,728,852 1,782,243 
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets 1,609 

Changes in non-cash operating items 
Accounts receivable (414,199) (263,271) 
Due from the City of Richmond (101,635) (25,483) 
Inventories held for resale (25,043) (20,666) 
Prepaid expenses and other deposits (165,799) 505,328 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (836,279) 1,054,523 
Post-employment benefits 284,842 264,898 
Deferred revenue (446,221) 2,953,905 
Rental deposits 4,408 

2,005,701 6,980,272 

Capital activities: 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (1,983,622) (3,966,248) 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 809 

(1,983,622) (3,965,439) 

Investing activities: 
Net purchase of investments (643,420) (2,629,686) 

Increase (decrease) in cash (621,341) 385,147 

Cash, beginning of year 1,743,783 1,358,636 

Cash, end of year $ 1,122,442 $ 1,743,783 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

1. Incorporation and nature of business: 

The Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation (the "Corporation") was incorporated on June 16, 2008 
under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia as a municipal corporation wholly-owned 
by the City of Richmond (the "City"). The business of the Corporation is to use the Richmond 
Olympic Oval facility (the "Oval") to provide a venue for a wide range of sports, business and 
community activities, including, but not limited to, being the long-track speed skating venue for 
the 2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games (the "Games"). 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector 
Accounting Standards. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Memberships, admissions and programs fees are recorded as revenue in the period that the 
services are rendered, with any unearned portion recorded as deferred revenue. Annual 
distributable amounts and trust income amounts are recognized as revenue when the amounts 
are approved by the 2010 Games Operating Trust (note 6) and when the related operating 
expenses and capital maintenance costs of the Oval are incurred. Any amounts received but 
not yet spent are recognized as deferred revenue. 

Sponsorship revenues are deferred and amortized to revenue over the term of sponsorship 
agreements. 

Restricted contributions are deferred and recognized as revenue when the resources are used 
for the purposes specified by the related agreement. 

(c) Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments include cash, investments, accounts receivable, and accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities. 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Equity instruments and 
derivatives that are quoted in an active market are subsequently recorded at fair value as at 
the reporting date. All other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or 
amortized cost unless management elects to carry the instruments at fair value. The Oval has 
not elected to carry any other financial instruments at fair value. 

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized on the Statement of Remeasurement Gains 
and Losses. They are recorded in the Statement of Operations when they are realized. There 
are no unrealized changes in fair value as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. 
As a result, the Oval does not have a Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments recorded at cost and 
are expensed as incurred. 

Sales and purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements . 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Financial instruments (continued): 

Accounts receivables, investments, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, are 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is 

determined to be other than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the Statement of 

Operations. 

(d) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the 
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not 

intended for sale in the ordinary course ofoperations. 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are initially recorded at cost. Amortization is provided on a 
straight-line basis at rates that reflect estimates of the economic lives of the assets over 

the following periods: 

Assets 

Athletic equipment 
Building improvements 
Computer software and equipment 
Facility equipment 
Infrastructure 
Signage 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 
Tenant improvements 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 

Rate 

5 - 10 years 
5 years 
3 years 
3 years 

40 years 
3 years 

10 years 
Term of the lease 

3 years 

Work in progress assets are not amortized until the asset is available for use. 

(ii) Impairment of tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer 
contribute to the Corporation's ability to provide goods and services, or when the value 
of future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their 
net book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the statement of 
operations. 

(e) Pension plan: 

The Corporation and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan (the 
"Plan"). As the Plan is a multi-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan, these 
contributions are expensed as incurred. 

6 

CNCL - 16 
(Special)



RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Income taxes: 

The Corporation is not subject to income taxes as it is a municipal corporation wholly-owned 
by the City. 

(g) Functional and object reporting: 

The operations of the Corporation are comprised of a single function, which includes 
provision of sports, fitness, and recreation services. As a result, the expenses of the 
Corporation are presented by object in the statement of operations. 

(h) Budget data: 

The budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2023 budget 
approved by the Board of Directors on January 17, 2023. 

(i) Measurement uncertainty: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that could affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Areas requiring the 
use of management estimates relate to the determination of valuation of accounts receivable 
and useful lives of tangible capital assets for amortization. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. The estimates are reviewed periodically and as adjustments become 
necessary, they are recorded in surplus (deficit) in the year in which they become known. 

U) Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue as the 
related expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met. 
Unrestricted transfers are recognized as revenue when received or if the amount to be 
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(k) Post-employment benefits: 

Post-employment benefits accrue to the Corporation's employees. The liabilities related to 
these benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement 
ages and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits 
plans are accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services 
necessary to earn the future benefits. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

3. Adoption of new accounting standards: 

4. 

(a) PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations: 

On January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard 
PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations. An asset retirement obligation is recognized when, as 
at the financial reporting date, all of the following criteria are met: 

(i) There is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 

(ii) The past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 

(iii) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and, 

(iv) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

The estimate of the asset retirement obligation includes costs directly attributable to the asset 
retirement activities and is recorded as a liability. As at December 31, 2023, the Corporation 
determined that there are no asset retirement obligations associated with its tangible capital 
assets and hence, the adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the amounts 
presented in these financial statements. 

(b) PS 3450 Financial Instruments and related standards: 

On January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard 
PS 3450 Financial Instruments, PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS 1201 Financial 
Statement Presentation and PS 3041 Portfolio Investments. Under PS 3450 Financial 

Instruments, all financial instruments are included on the statement of financial position and 
are measured at either fair value or amortized cost based on the characteristics of the 
instrument and the Corporation's accounting policy choices (see note 2(c)). 

The adoption of these standards did not have any impact on the amounts presented in these 
financial statements. 

Investments: 

Investments represent term deposits as follows: 

Purchase date Maturitx: date 2023 2022 

April 24, 2023 April 24, 2024 $ 5,000,000 $ 
June 27, 2023 June 27, 2024 600,000 
July 21, 2023 January 22, 2024 2,500,000 
July 21, 2023 July 22, 2024 5,000,000 
December 7, 2023 April 8, 2024 1,750,000 
July 14, 2022 July 14, 2023 3,987,088* 
July 19, 2022 July 19, 2023 3,619,492* 
December 21, 2022 April 21, 2023 6,000,000 
December 29, 2022 May 1, 2023 600,000 

$ 14,850,000 $ 14,206,580 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

4. Investments (continued): 

The interest rate of the term deposits ranges from 5.66% to 6.30% (2022 - 5.05% to 5.22%). 

* Investments held by the City of Richmond on behalf of the Corporation, with income earned 
fully attributable to the Corporation. 

5. Due from City of Richmond: 

The amounts due from the City of Richmond arise in the normal course of business and are 
unsecured, and non-interest bearing with no stated repayment terms. 

6. 2010 Games Operating Trust Fund: 

On November 14, 2002, under the terms of the Multiparty Agreement for the Games, the 
Government of Canada and the Province of British Columbia agreed to establish the Legacy 
Endowment Fund (the "Fund") and to each contribute $55 million. On March 31, 2004, under the 
terms of the 2010 Games Operating Trust Agreement ("GOT"), an irrevocable trust was created 
known as GOT and the 2010 Games Operating Trust Society (the "Society") became the trustee 
of the Fund. The purpose of the Fund is to fund operating expenses and capital maintenance 
costs of certain facilities created for the Games, specifically the Oval and the Whistler Sliding 
Centre and Nordic Centre, and to assist with the continued development of amateur sport in 
Canada. Subsequent to the formation of the GOT, the City, as owner of the Oval, became a 
beneficiary of the GOT and became responsible for complying with obligations set by the Society 
and GOT in order to receive funding. 

Effective December 31, 2007: 

(a) the Society Board divided the Fund into three funds: the Speed Skating Oval Fund; the 
Whistler Sliding Centre and Nordic Centre Fund; and the Contingency Fund; and 

(b) the Society Board divided the capital and any accumulated but undistributed income of the 
Fund as follows: Speed Skating Oval Fund (40%); Whistler Sliding Centre and Nordic 
Centre Fund (40%); and the Contingency Fund (20%). 

Effective April 21, 2009, the City entered into an agreement with the Vancouver Organizing 
Committee for the 2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games ("VANOC"). The agreement 
details the terms and conditions to which the City is required to adhere in order to receive funding 
from GOT. Effective September 1, 2011, VANOC assigned the agreement to the Society. 

Funds from GOT are paid to the City first and the City distributes the funds to the Corporation. 
Revenue from GOT is comprised of: 

2023 

2022 annual distributable amount approve and received in 2023 $ 4,136,315 
2021 annual distributable amount approve and received in 2022 

$ 4,136,315 
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2022 

$ 
4,212,071 

$ 4,212,071 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

7. Post-employment benefits: 

The Corporation provides certain post-employment benefits, non-vested sick leave, compensated 

absences, and termination benefits to its employees. 

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 
Opening adjustment due to actuarial valuation, January 1, 2023 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 

$ 

$ 

2023 

900,458 
206,542 

84,300 
47,700 

(53,700) 

1,185,300 

An actuarial valuation for these benefits was performed to determine the Corporation's accrued 

benefit obligation as at December 31, 2023. This actuarial gain is being amortized over a period 

equal to the employees' expected average remaining service lifetime of 11-years. 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 
Unamortized net actuarial gain 

Accrued benefit liability, end of year 

2023 

$ 1,185,300 

$ 1,185,300 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the Corporation's accrued benefit obligation are as 

follows: 

Discount rate 
Expected future inflation rate 
Expected wage and salary range increases 

8. Deferred revenue: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Add: amounts received 
Less: revenue recognized 

Balance, end of year 

10 

2023 

$ 8,578,270 
12,691,087 

(13,137,308) 

$ 8,132,049 

2023 

4.10% 
2.50% 

2.50% to 3.00% 

2022 

$ 5,624,365 
12,558,975 
(9,605,070) 

$ 8,578,270 

CNCL - 20 
(Special)



RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

8. Deferred revenue (continued): 

Deferred revenue comprises of: 

2023 2022 

Memberships and programs $ 1,322,166 $ 1,061,065 
Sponsorship fees 28,226 28,226 
Sport Hosting funding (note 12(b)) 664,897 817,964 
Richmond Olympic Experience (note 12(b)) 3,526,038 3,638,995 
The Fields (a) 2,590,722 3,032,020 

$ 8,132,049 $ 8,578,270 

(a) The Fields is a year-round outdoor activity space for sports programs and events. As at 

December 31, 2023, $2,590,722 of the funds restricted for The Fields remain in deferred 

revenue and the revenue will be recognized based on the terms specified by the related 

agreements. 

9. Tangible capital assets: 

Balance Balance 
December 31, December 31, 

Cost 2022 Additions Disr2osals 2023 

Athletic equipment $ 4,383,290 $ 1,092,879 $ (17,213) $ 5,458,956 
Building improvements 3,125,675 195,862 3,321,537 
Computer software and equipment 3,696,811 173,510 3,870,321 
Facility equipment 1,535,247 145,512 1,680,759 
Infrastructure 5,880,940 4,937,378 10,818,318 
Signage 195,542 23,115 218,657 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 3,884,306 793,768 4,678,074 
Tenant improvements 65,729 65,729 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 399,227 18,486 417,713 
Work in progress 5,496,888 (5,396,888) 100,000 

$ 28,663,655 $ 1,983,622 $ (17,213) $ 30,630,064 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

9. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Balance Balance 
December 31, Amortization December 31, 

Accumulated amortization 2022 ex12ense Dis12osals 2023 

Athletic equipment $ 2,866,828 $ 374,296 $ (17,213) $ 3,223,911 
Building improvements 2,354,463 293,467 2,647,930 
Computer software and equipment 3,339,835 266,806 3,606,641 
Facility equipment 1,346,419 132,199 1,478,618 
Infrastructure 1,051,070 187,918 1,238,988 
Signage 173,470 17,030 190,500 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 2,773,096 438,063 3,211,159 
Tenant improvements 65,729 65,729 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 364,938 19,073 384,011 

$ 14,335,848 $ 1,728,852 $ (17,213) $ 16,047,487 

2023 2022 
Net book Net book 

value value 

Athletic equipment $ 2,235,045 $ 1,516,462 
Building improvements 673,607 771,212 
Computer software and equipment 263,680 356,976 
Facility equipment 202,141 188,828 
Infrastructure 9,579,330 4,829,870 
Signage 28,157 22,072 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 1,466,915 1,111,210 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 33,702 34,289 
Work in progress 100,000 5,496,888 

$ 14,582,577 $ 14,327,807 

The Oval land and building complex and its major equipment components are the property of the 

City and are not recorded in these financial statements. 

There was no write-down of tangible capital assets during the year (2022 - nil). 

10. Accumulated surplus: 

Accumulated surplus is comprised of: 
Share capital 
Capital reserve 
Other reserves/provisions 
Operating surplus 
Invested in tangible capital assets 

12 

2023 

$ 1 
11,586,385 

774,472 
607,259 

8,503,469 

$ 21,471,586 

2022 

$ 1 
9,846,053 
1,166,472 

610,286 
7,871,999 

$ 19,494,811 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

11. Financial risk management: 

The Corporation has exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments: credit 
risk, market risk, and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors ensures that the Corporation has 
identified its major risks and ensures that the management monitors and controls them. 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from certain 
financial assets held by the Corporation consisting of cash, account receivables, and 
investments. The Corporation limits its credit risk by holding its cash and investments with 
federally regulated, credit worthy financial institutions. The Corporation assesses these 

financial assets on a continuous basis for any amounts that are not collectible or realizable. 

It is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant credit risk from its 
financial instruments. 

(b) Market and interest rate risk: 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the 
Corporation's income. The objective of market risk management is to control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return of risk. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rate. 

It is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant market or interest 
rate risk from its financial instruments. 

(c) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they come due. The Corporation manages liquidity risks by continually monitoring actual and 
forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing and financing activities to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Corporation's reputation. 

It is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant liquidity risk. 

There have been no changes in risk disclosures since 2022. 

13 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

12. Related party transactions: 

(a) City of Richmond: 

The Corporation leases the Oval from the City for $1 annually. 

In 2023, nil (2022 - $24,663) of general and administration and salaries and benefits 
expenses were charged to the Corporation for the provision of City staff time. 

The Corporation is party to the Richmond Oval Agreement (the "Agreement") with the City, 
which had an effective date of July 1, 2008. The Agreement established the terms and 
conditions of the relationship between the City and the Corporation, including any financial 
support. 

During 2023, the Corporation received a contribution from the City of $3,903,713 
(2022 - $3,754,292) (note 17). 

(b) Sport Hosting Function: 

Effective July 1, 2011, the Sport Hosting function of the City was transferred to the Corporation. 
This function is fully funded by the hotel tax. In 2023, $400,000 (2022 - $399,996) was 
transferred from the City to the Corporation as funding for the operations of that department. 
As at December 31, 2023, $664,897 (2022 - $817,964) has been included in deferred revenue 
(note 8) and during 2023, $553,067 (2022 - $336,255) was recognized in memberships, 
admissions, and programs revenue on the statement of operations relating to Sport Hosting. 

In previous years, the Corporation received hotel tax funding restricted for the purpose of 
purchasing tangible capital assets related to the Richmond Olympic Experience project. In 
order to retain the funding received in prior years, the Corporation must maintain and operate 
the tangible capital assets purchased with these funds over the life of the tangible capital 
assets. On an annual basis, the Corporation must provide a report to the City as to the use of 
the funds and the maintenance and operation of these tangible capital assets. As at year-end, 
$3,526,038 (2022 - $3,638,995) of the funds restricted for the purchase of tangible capital 
assets for the Richmond Olympic Experience remains in deferred revenue and the revenue 
will be recognized over the life of the underlying assets. 

13. Pension plan: 

The Corporation and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed 
pension plan). The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible 
for administering the Plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The Plan 
is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benems are based on a formula. 
As at December 31, 2022, the Plan has about 241,000 active members and approximately 
124,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 43,000 contributors from local 
governments. 

14 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

13. Pension plan (continued): 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the Plan 
and adequacy of Plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 
member contribution rate to fund the Plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on 
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer 
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the Plan. This rate is then 
adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any funding deficit. 

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as of December 31, 2021, indicated a 
$3,761,000,000 funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The next 
valuation will be as at December 31, 2024, with results available in 2025. 

Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate, 
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to 
individual employers participating in the Plan. 

The Corporation paid $630,578 (2022 - $553,353) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 
2023. 

14. Economic dependence: 

The Corporation is economically dependent on receiving funding from GOT (note 6) and the City 
(note 12). 

15. Contractual rights: 

Contractual rights are the right to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that 
will result in revenues and assets in the future and are not yet recorded in the financial statements. 
The Corporation has contractual rights to receive sponsorship revenue and lease revenue over the 
next four years in the following total amounts: 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

$ 526,065 
, 513,424 

476,457 
378,054 

In addition, the Corporation receives funding from the City (note 12(a)) and from the GOT 
(note 6). 

15 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

16. Other revenue: 

Other revenue consists primarily of sponsorship revenue, leasing revenue, parking fees, and 
interest income. 

17. Government transfers: 

Government transfers are received for operating and capital activities. During 2023, the 
Corporation received an operating transfer of $3,903,713 (2022 - $3,754,292) (note 12(a)) and 
capital transfers of $396,399 (2022 - $1,353,601). The capital transfers are included in deferred 
revenue. 

18. Comparative figures: 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement 
presentation adopted for the current year. These reclassifications do not impact the annual 
surplus reported in the prior period or net financial assets. 
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Appendix C 

UNANIMOUS CONSENT RESOLUTIONS OF THE SHAREHOLDER OF 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 

(the "Company") 

(in lieu of the annual general meeting) 

The undersigned, being the Shareholder of the Company entitled to vote at an annual general meeting, hereby 

consents to and adopts in writing the following resolutions: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

the Shareholder acknowledges and confirms the previous receipt of financial statements of the Company for the 

period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, together with the auditor's report on such financial 

statements, which financial statements were approved by the Company's board of directors on April 24, 2024 

and presented to the Shareholder at the Finance Committee meeting of Richmond City Council on May 6, 2024; 

In accordance with the Company's Articles, the following persons, who have consented to be directors of the 

Company, are hereby elected as directors of the Company, to hold office for the term ending immediately prior 

to the annual general meeting of the Company held in 2026: 

Name Term 

2026 

2026 

2026 

2026 

2026 

KPMG LLP be appointed as auditors of the Company until the next annual reference date of the Company or until 

a successor is appointed, at a remuneration to be fixed by the directors; 

the 2023 Annual Report of the Company is hereby received; and 

June 3, 2024 be and is hereby selected as the annual reference date for the Company for its current annual 

reference period. 

2_Consent Resolution Shareholder in lieu of AGM v2 

DATED as of June 3, 2024 

CITY OF RICHMOND 

Mayor Malcolm Brodie 
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TO: KPMG LLP 

NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR 

Chartered Accountants 

PO Box 10426 Pacific Centre 

777 Dunsmuir Street, 11th Floor 

Vancouver, British Columbia 

V7Y 1K3 

Appendix D 

Pursuant to Section 204(6) of the British Columbia Business Corporations Act, notice is hereby 

given of your appointment as auditor of Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation, to hold office until 

the close of the next annual reference date of the Company, or until a successor is appointed. 

DATED as of June 3, 2024. 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL 

CORPORATION 

Rick Dusanj 

Chief Financial Officer 
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ANNUAL REPORT 
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LEGACY GOALS 
AND OPERATING 
OBJEC1'1VES 

LEGACY GOALS 

The Corporation adopted a set of rive objectives 
that addresses Its obllgatlons to the City under the 

Operating Agreement and the fund ing requirements of 

the 2010 Games Operallng Trust ("GOT'I. To continue 

to build on Its strong Olymplc legacy, the Corporation 

will focus on: 

1. Eslabfishlng positive brand awareness. 

2 Becoming valued by the community and Its employees. 

3. Becoming the desired location for community sport. 
health and fitness. 

4. Supporting high performance sport 

5. Operating lo a financially sustainable ma Mer. 

OPERATING OBJECTIVES 

The City and the Corporation are parties to an operating 
agreement dated July 1, 2008 (the •operatng Agreement1 

whereh thefollowi'lg fouro~sarenoted: 

• The Oval will provide facllilles, programs and 

services for quality sport. fitness, recreational uses 

and wellness services for the Richmond community, 

neighbouring communities and the general publ ic. 

• The Oval will be developed, used and promoted 

as a training and competition facility for high 

performance sport. 

• The Oval will provide facllities for cultural, 

community and entertainment events. 

• The Oval will provide ancillary commercial, retail, 

health and wellness services to enhance its use in 

respect o f the activities set out above. 
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Parking Improvement Strategy 

The Oval took multiple measures to ease pressure on its parking system and 

provide visitors with current Information about the pa1kade's status. Seventeen 

additional parking spaces were added to the parkade and a dedicated lane was 

introduced for drop-offs and pick-ups to reduce trafnc on Oval Way. The Oval 

also arranged off-site parking for staff of sport groups to ensure that members, 

guests and event attendees can access as many pa,king spots as possible. 

Finally, real-time parking availability status was made available on the Oval 

website to assist those planning their trips to the faclli l y. 
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Rt!roHoop1M9N. 

Oval Community Events 
The Oval provides a unique setting where like•minded 
Richmond residents gather to work towards their 
health, fitness and wellness goals. Two community 
events were organized in 2023 lo show appreciation 
for loyal Oval members. 

On July 21, the Oval hosted Retro Hoops Night !Of' 
basketball players who attend drop-in sessions. A DJ spun 
classlc hip·hop music while membe1s enjoyed nostalgic 
basketball games on a giant LEO screen. Attendees we1e 
also treated to pizza and drinks and had the opportunity to 
shop for vintage basketball jerseys and other thrift items 
from local thrift stores, RC Thrifts and Cherry Pick Vintage. 

On October 17, Ghosts and Grips created a Halloween 
atmosphere for members participating in drop•ln 
climbing. The event featured a dyno competition, 
costume contest and a high jump challenge hosted by 
the OVALHP team. AUendees enjoyed spooky music 
andfestivetreats l hroughouttheevenlng. 

Keeping Richmond Active 
The International Olymplc Committee (ICC) launched 
its Lers Move campaign to celeb,ate Olympic Day on 

June 21, calling on people worldwide to move their 
bodies for 30 minutes. The campaign aligned with the 
annual ParticipACTION Challenge, which seeks to keep 
Canadian communities active in June. To join both local 
and global movements, the Oval challenged its members 
to partake in as many sports and fitness activities as 
possible throughout June. The Oval also released a 
sports and activities schedule for staff that included 
Calirornia kickball games, walks along the dyke and 

OVAlfit DEKA '"' classes. By the end of the month, the 
Oval contributed over 1,590.000 minutes of activity to 
the ParticipACTION Challenge. 
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Unveiling the Fields 

The Fields at Richmond Olympic Oval is a new multi-use facility for outdoor sports, 

entertainment and tourism located on the Oval's south side. The Fields provides 

year-round facilities for the Increased demand for youth sport programming and 

event hosting. Available for a wide range of activities, The Fields features over 

4,200 square metres of multi-sport t urf, three hard-surface basketball courts, an 

outdoor training area and field-side high performance training space. The Fields 

is available for public use outside of programming hours. With the approval of the 

City of Richmond to Improve the space, this project is financially supported by the 

Richmond Hotel Destination Association !RHOA). the Province or British Columbia's 

Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure Program and the Government of 

Canada's Pacific Economic Development program. User groups who utilized The 

Fields in 2023 Include: 
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Scaling New Heights 

On February 1 O, the Oval hosted its firs t BC Schools 

Climbing Competition, which saw over 220 students from 

1 3 schools across the Lower Mainland and Vancouver 

Island compete in sport climbing. The competition 

provided an entry point for s tudent Involvement In the 
sport. with lhe school environment offering an economic 

opportuni ty for youth to get Involved. The competition's 

formal structure creates a pathway for clubs and teachers 

to wofk towards and helps teachers secure funding for the 
sport within their schools. 

On December 5 and 7, the Oval hosted the ISABC School 

Climbing Competition, where over 270 students from 22 

schools competed. Given the event's success, plans for 

school competitions in 2024 are already underway. 

Hoops Hype 
Drop-In basketball remains a highly sought-after activity 

at the Richmond Olympic Oval, attracting members and 

visitors alike. last year, the facllity saw a total of 135.000 

visitors, an 81% increase compared to 2022. This sharp 

rise can be partly attributed to the relaxa tion of pandemic• 

related restrictions. specifically the lifting of capacity limits 

and the need to pre-book each visit. 

135,000 
Basketball Drop-In Visitations 
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Chasing Excellence 
The High Performance Department o f the Richmond Olympic Oval nurtures young 

athletes by providing progressive programs and comprehensive support services 

based on the long-term athlete development framework created by Canadian Sport 

for life. This framework aims to cultivate an active lifestyle among Canadians, 

beginning with early age development of play and movement and continuing 

through to the Train to Win stage, where athletes compete at the highest level. 

Richmond's very own Wesley Chiu, a rising star In figure skating, eKempliries the 

Oval's role In developing the community's young athletes. Wesley first skated on 

Oval lee at age eight and has trained wi th the Connaught Figure Skating Club at 

the Oval since 2014. He began 2023 with an impressive third-place f inish at t he 

Canadian National Men's Championships, placed second a l the ISU Cranberry Cup 

in Boston, and was selected as one o f 18 athletes to compete as a part of Team 

Canada at the ISU Grand Prix o f Figure Skating Series held ln Vancouver. 

Wesley's progression from a novice skater to an Olympic hopeful has been 

supported by OVAL HP strength and conditioning coaches to complement his on-ice 

trainingwithConnaught . 
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CARHA Hockey World Cup 

Following three years of pandemic-related 
postponements, the Molson CARHA Hockey World Cup 
landed in Richmond from March 19to 25. This event 
attracted over 1,500 athletes from 100 teams worldwide, 
including from Australia, England, Finland, Italy, Kazakhstan, 
Sweden, Switzerland, Ukraine and the US. In addition to 
Canadian teams.. The Oval had the honOU" of hosting 56 
games and the event's openWlg and closing ceremonies. 
As well the popular Players Pub, where athletes watch 
games, was hosted in the Legacy Lounge, which c,..,erlooks 
the two O)ympic•slzed ice rinks. 
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YEAR OF EVENTS EID 
In 2023. the Richmond Olympic Oval hosted 57 events. ranging from community 
meets lo International sport competi'llons. 

JANUARY 
JANUARY 7-9 

BCSRA Tradeshow 

JA14UARY 6- 8 

BC Hockey Showcase - Female Ul B 
AAA Showcase 2023 

JANUARY 14 

Pinnacle Cheer - Snowflake tu 
JAl4UARY 21 - 22 

BC Wrestling Western Canadian 

Championships 

JANUARY 27-29 

HP Climblng Competition 

FEBRUARY 
FEBRUARY 4 

Harry Jerome Indoor Classic (2) 

FEBRUARY 17 - 20 

Rhythmic Gymnastics Elite 

Championships 

FEBRUARY 25 

Pinnac le Cheer - Mardi Parti 

f.lARCH 4 

Push4 1mpact 

MARCH6-7 

Rehab Expo 

MARCH 19 

CARHA Opening Ceremonies 

MARCHZ0 -25 

CARHA Games (3) 

MARCH ZS 

CARHA Closing Ceremonies 

MA RCH 31 - APRIL 2 

Wheelchair Rugby VancoLNer 

ln11italional 

APRIL 
APRIL4 
Sport For life Summll 

APRIL 7-10 

Climbing Youth Provincials 

APRIL 14-16 

Wor ld Karate Federation 

APRIL2 1-23 

U17118 Volleyball Provincials 

APRIL29-30 

Karate BC Provincials 

MAY 
MAY6-7 

Delta Gymnastics Invitational and 

Cash&CarryCup(4J 

MAYB 

Chinese Street Dance Festival 

MAYB- 15 

WheelchairBasketballNationals(S) 

M AY 19-21 

Canadian Championships in Men's 

and Women's Artistic Gymnastics 

MAY2t; 

Hoopfest 2023 (6) 

MAY27-28 

Can-Am International Martial Ar i s 

Championships 

JUNE 
JU14E 3-4 

Asia Pacific Table Tennis Open 

JUl~E 7 

Sport Event Congress 

JUl~EIO-U 

BCSRA 

JULY 
JULYS 

Cars and Hoops 

JULY 15 - 16 

Wheelchair Boccia Provincials 

JULY22-23 

Wheelchair Floorball Championships 

JULY 23 

DEKA TU STRONG (7) 

JULY 30 

Canadian Alliance of Chinese 

Association Multicultural Carnival 

AUGUST 
AUGUST S-6 

United Filipino Volleyball Tournament 

AUGUST S- 6 

MADE Hoops 

AUGUST 19 

ADCC (Abu Dhabl Combat Club) 

Open Vancouver 

AUGUST 23 

World Cup Field Painting Competition 

AUGUST 25 - 27 

Beat the Heat Hockey Tournament 

AUGUST 26 

The Fields Open House (B) 

·~~¥ - . ·. , ' -2'.... -
~ j; ·~· 

SEPTEMBER 
SEPTEMBER 2 

Nintendo Switch Cinema Experience 

SEPTEMBER 8- 10 

North American Climbing Cup (9) 

SEPTEMBER 9 

Hooptaw 

SEPTEMBER 10 

Forever Young BK (10) 

SEPTEMBER 30- OCTOBER 2 

World Masters Functional Fitness 

Championships 

OCTOBER 
OCTOBER ? 

Korean Consul Cup Taekwondo 

Championships 

OCTOBER 20 

Para Tough Cup 

OCTOBER 26 -29 

Boccia Nationals 

NOVEMBER 
lrnVEMBER 2 - S 

Coat Sale 

140VEMBER 3- 5 

Wheelchalr Rugby Provincial Team 

Selection Camp and Tournament 

140VEMBER 11 - 12 

BC Handball Cup 

UOVEM BER 19 

City Shred 

I IOVEMBER 25 

DEKA"' MILE and DEKA' u STRONG 

NOVEMBER 26 - 27 

Senior Lead National Championships 

DECEMBER 
DECEMBER2-3 

Karate BC Canada Cup tlll 

OECEMBERO 

SeahawksFlagClinic 

OECEMBER 16-17 

Pinnacle Cheer - Pink Competition 

f<ICl-t1 :0IDOl.~Mf'ICOW•Ll0?3i'lll-lU~LFEPQm 2 7 
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Forever Young BK 

The ninth annual Forever Young BK took over 

the Olympic Riverside Plaza on September 10, 

where 245 runners and walkers 0',18 f the age 

o f 55 raced along the middle arm of the North 

Dyke Trail. The event serves as a celebration 

of those who have committed to being fit 
forlifeandasafundraiserfortheOreamOn 
Foundation, which grants wishes to seniors who 

would o therwise be unable to fulfill their dreams. 

Thanks to the donations from sponsors and 

par ticipants, $3,000was donated to Dream On. 

Sport Event Congress 
From June 6 to 8, Richmond hosted the 2023 

Sport Event Congress, an annual conrerence 
that brings the sport tour ism induslfy together. 

On June 7, the Oval hosted various activities for 

congress attendees, including a Volleyball Calll!da 

exhibillon game, try•il activities like climbing and 

wheelchair basketball, tours or the facilities and 

more. The conference was attended by 220 of 

Canada's top proressionals ln all aspects or sport 

events, competitions and tournaments. 

The Fields Open House 

On August 26, lhe community was welcomed to The 

Fields Open House, the facility's official opening. The 

free event featured the Oval Blast Jamboree U 11 and 

U12 soccer tournament. Van 3M3 basketball tournament. 

fami ly- fun activities, open admission to the Olympic 

E~perlence. barbecue and more. Over 3,000 Richmond 
residents attended the festivities, which were kicked o ff 

by a ribbon·cul ting ceremony. 

From The Fields to the 
Skate Park: Diverse Sport 
Camp Success 

With 229 spor t camps offering 43 different camps 

throughout July and August. 2023 marked another 

successful year for Summer Sport Camps at the 

Oval. Of the more t han 2,200 camp registrations, 

7g'll, were Richmond res idents. The Oval hosted 

camps such as Beach Tots and Learn to Climb, while 

Outdoor Soccer Camps were held at the nearby 

Dover Park and Learn to Skateboard took place at the 

Richmond Skate Park. The Oval also offered several 

o ff-site camps such as Try Triathlon, GO Extreme! 

Girls in Motion and Outdoor Athlete. 
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Learning Through Sport 

In 2023, the Olympic Experience welcomed over 3,000 

students from 77 schools across Metro Vancouver with its 

popular education programming. Offering customizable 

experiences, ranging from one-hour to full-day bookings, 

the Olympic Eitperience Integrates physical activities 
wi th learning about the h!story of sport ln Canada. 

Programming is designed to help educators meet the 

British Columbia Ministry of Educallon's vision for student 

success by enhancing thinking, communication and 

personal/soclal core competencies. 

3,000 
Student visits from 77 schools 
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2024 
OUTLOOK 
The Richmond Olympic Oval ls dedicated to enhancing 
its reputation as a top-tier venue for sports, fitness 
and community engagement Wrth a refreshed sense 

of purpose and a pledge to deliver excellence, eicpect 
2024 to bea year of progress, creativity and meaningful 

contributions to the community. 

Starting from early 2024, the Oval will be introducing a new 

non-peak drop-In rate of $10 lo encourage people to visit 

dUfing low visitation hours. This wilt provide community 
members access to daytime sport and fitness activities at 
a ,educed cost. Drop-In activities will be e~panded at the 

climbing wan. with additional morning and evening hours 
to accommodate Increased vis,tatiol\ Drop-in w,11 also be 
eicteoded outdoors 10 The Fields to incllde sports such 

as soccer. Members and guests can also look forward 
to upgrades to the fitness centre equipment. holds on 

the climbing wall and Improvements to the Olympic 
Riverside Plaza. 

In 2024, the Oval will continue to offer 63 weekly group 
fitness classes, provicfing even more opportunities for 
lnd'Mduals to pursue thell frtness goals under lhe guidance 
of experienced Instructors. The OVAUit suite of classes 
ranges from low-Intensity FLOW formats. Including Pi!ates 
and Roll and Resto1e. to hlgh•lntenslty ATHLETIC formats 
designed to challenge each participant's Inner athlele. 

FmaUy. an addrtlonal area of focus in 2024 ls the plInnlnQ 

and hosting of a SI.ITlmer event that seakS to111rut the 
cammunityandpiovideengagingeclMtiNlt thaCMil's 
indoor andoutdoorlfcilittff Thll ..,.,,refflllOgdfl•thl 
local community tocelebratelPO'\,fltnuaand~ 

in thesummermonth1andedllnolllle■-■drdlnrll 

roster of sporting and cultural events on the calendar for 
2024. Sport hosting remains a key focus area for 2024, 

l'lilh sporting events contributing positively to Richmond's 
economy through hotel stays and other related spending. 

The Oval demonstrates an unwavering commitment 
to excellence, Innovation and meaningful community 
engagement It inspires active and healthy lifestyles while 

cultivating a sense of belong Ing within the community. 
The Oval team eagerly anticipates welcoming new and 
familiar faces In the coming year as lhe Oval emba1ks on a 

wellness journey together with its pat,ons. 

CNCL - 46 
(Special)



APPENDIX A - THE CORPORATION 

The Company, which changed its name to the "Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation," on August 10, 2010, was Incorporated 

under the name "0827805 BC Ltd." on June 16, 2008 under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. Its purpose is to 

manage the business, operations and maintenance of the Oval. The City or Richmond, as the sole shareholder o f the Company, has 

appointed a Board of Directors consisting of a selection of community leaders with a broad range of specialized e~pertise. 

Directors 

During 2023, the Company has 12 Directors. The name and Province of residence of each Director, each Director's principal 

occupation, and the month each Director was appointed to the Board are indicated in the chart below. The term or office for full-term 

directors is one to two years. 

~:;::~::;mce Pnnc1pal Occupatton Ot1ector Smee Re ele<ted Tenn 

Deon,sSkulsky. 
BntishColumbla.Canada 

Moray Ke/th. 
British Columbia.Canada 

Geo1geDuncan, 
BrotlshColumbla. Canada 

UmenclraMlta1, 
British Columbia.Canada 

Peter Geiman. 
BrftishColumbla.Canada 

Gall Torry, 
British Columbia.Canada 

UsaCoweM. 
BritlshColumbla.Canada 

Walter Sao, 
BritlshColumbla,Canada 

GaryCollmge, 
Brl\JshCotumbla,Canada 

Chris Gear, 
Bri\JshColumbiil,Canada 

Chrisl lneNesblt!.OLY 
BritishColumb\a,Canada 

WayneDuzita. 
British Columbia.Canada 

Ptesldenl 
SkulskyConsultil"l{lGroupUd. 

President. 
Dueck Auto Group 

ChlefE.recu1NeOlflcer. 
Richmond Olympic Oval 

ExecutivoVicePresiden111ndGeneralMani19er, 
Ebcolndus!rlesltd.andAdvancedCycTotron 
Systems Inc, 

Principal, 
PeterGi!1man&Assocs. loc.. 

Genori11Manpger, 
R/chmondAulot.'callAssoclatlon 

As.sooate, 
AposlrophePRlnc 

Retired 

Geni!ril!Managu, 
Pan Pacific Vancouver 

LillvyerandBusinessConsultant 

lllajor Projects Plannar, C1tyol Va11couvu 
li\APlaming 
Olymp~ Champlonvancou'IIN 2010 
Olymp~ Silver lrledalllst T01ino 2006 
OLY Canada Corm-.ss/on 

Associate VP. 
TerricapGroupofCompanies 

Ftl><uary2011 

June200B 

June2008 

June2008 

June2016 

Jurie2016 

June2016 

Jurie2016 

June2016 

July2018 

Juty2018 

October2019 

June2021 

June2021 

May2022 

Jurie2021 

May2022 

May 2022 

May2022 

lrlay2022 

2yearsend.ng 
Decembe<J l ,2023 

2yearsencfng 
December3 l ,2023 

2yfl!lrs 

2yea~ending 
December31,2023 

2years 

2years 

2yearseo6ng 
~tembl!I 22, 2023 

2years 

2years 

2yeirsending 
Oecember31,2023 

2yearsencfng 
December 31, 2023 

2yearaeoding 
December31, 2023 
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Executive Officers 

During 2023. the Company has hvo executive officers. The name and province or residence of each executive officer, the offices held 

by each officer and each officer's principal occupation are as follows: 

Name & Province of Re51dente Pos1t1on Principal Occupation 

GeofgeOuncan. 
B,ltishColumbla. Canada 

RitkOusanJ. 
Br!tishColLlmbla,Caoada 

Council Liaison 

Ch!ef ExecllliveOfficer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Chief Executive Olfice1, Richmond Olympic Oval 

Olfeclof. Rnance. lMovaUon & Technology, 
Richmond Olympic O>'al 

The City has assigned a Council liaison to attend the meetings of the Richmond Olympic o..-al Board. Counci llor Alexa l oo currently 

holds the Council Liaison position. 

Name & Province of Res1dente Pos1bon Pw,cipat Occupat,on 

Councillor Ale~a Loo. 
British Columbia.Canada 

Committees 

Council Lia ison Councll lor,Cilyo!Rlchmond 

During 2023, the committees of the Board and the current members of each committee are listed below. 

Bus,nessPlannlngComm,ttee Aud1t&FinanceComrn,ttee Richmond 0/yrnp,c EKperience Comm ttee 

Mo1ay Keith (Cornrnlt1ee Chair I Gary Colllnge (Comrnlnee Chair I Dennis Slwlsky (e~·officio & Committee Chair) 

Ge019eOuncan Ge0<geDuncan Moray Keith 

DennisSkulsky(eKolnclo) Denn!sSkulsky(eKofficlo) Christine Nesbit! 

UmendraMltal ClmsGe11 

Lisa Cowell Pe\(!rGeiman WalterSoo 

Gan Terry WayneDIIZltB Ga~Terry 

Chris Gear Christine Nesbitt 

CMstineNesbitl 

APPENDIX B - AWARDS SINCE OPENING 

Awarding Body Aw ard 

Canadian Association of Sport Heritage 

RlckHanMJnFoundatloo 

Where Magazine 

lntematlonal Olympic Committee. 
lntemational Association lor Sports and Leisure FacY1Ues 

lntematlonalOlyrnpicCommltte1t. 
lntema1lona!AssoclatlonforSpor1sandLelsureFacmues, 

International Paratympk: Commi1tee. 
International Association for Sports and Leisure Faclitles 

Canadian lnteriofs, Best In Canada Design Awards 

CEBCAwards lorEnginee1ing&cellence 

RoyalArchltectural lnstituteofCanada 

Volnco1Ne10rganizingC01TV11lttee 

WoodWORKSI 

lnsti1u1lonofStrncturollEnglnee<s 

The ASH RAE Technology Awa1ds 

Canad ran Consult,ng Engineer Awards 

Noltional Council of StrucU.Mal Engineers Assocletlon 

The Globe FoundatJOn and the Wofld Green Building CouncM 

VRCA Awards or Excellence 

VRCA Awards or EAcetlenca 

VRCA Awards or E.xceUence 

VRCA Awards or 8.cellence 

VRCA Awilrds or E.r.cellenco 

VRCA Awards or Excellence 

CISCIICCA Steel Awol,ds (8IiUsh Cotr.mbla Chapter) 

Canadian Wood Council 

lnlormAwatds 

CASH Award or Excellence 

2017 Circle ot facallance Awa,d 101 Bas\ Practices Towards Unllleisal Access 

A Bes\ New Atllactlon In Canada Award: lhe Olympic Experience at U10 
Richmond Olympic Oval 

lOC/lAKS All Time Awa,d 

IOC/IAKS Gold Medal 

IPCIIAKS Distlnctlon Award 

Best of Canolda Design Award 

Mer i1Awa,d 

AwardofExcollonceforlnnovoltlonlnArchltecture 

Suste!nabitlty Star Award 

lnsUtutional Wood Design 

Spo1tsof Lelsu10 StrUClUfes Award 

Region XI Winner: New Public Assembly Building 

Technlc.al Men\ Award 

Finalist Awa,d of Exceptional Merit In Buildings over SlOOmntion 

&cellence fOfGreenBuildingAwolrd 

Chairman's Trade Award Gold 

Chahman·s Trade Award S011u 

Presidenrs Trade Award S~11er 

Manu!acture,&SupplierSft~er 

Electr1calContractorsO,·er$1 Million-Gold 

General Conlrilctor of the Yea, Award 

Trade ContractOf or the Year Award 

Outstanding Slee1 Structure: Engineering Division Award of Ei.ceffenca 

North American Wood Design Award 

Honour Award, Interior Design 

Concrete Reinforcing Steel lnstllute Award Winner, Cultu,al & Enterlainment FaciLitles 

Socialyof Amelie.in Reglstl!fedArcMects lSARAl. NewYofl<Counc.il Citatlon 

VANOC Sustainability Star Award The 2009 Sustainability Star 

20 l O BUILDJIIGS Pfoject lnl'IOVaUons Awards 

2010 SARA Professional Design Awa1ds Prog1am 

2010 ln1e111at.10nal Property Award {Bloomt>e,g, Inc.) 

20 10Athlet/cBusiness 

2010 Europa an Centre tor Archltectuie Art Design and Urban 
Studies arid The Chicago Athenaeum: ►.tuseum ol A,chitec ture 

2010ARl00Award 

20 l O REBGV Commercla! Bu~ding Awards 

ArchDallyBuildlngortheYear2010 

lntemoltio™1ilPropertyAwards 

IOCIIAKS2011 

IPC/IAKS 

2010 CISC "Nationar Steel Oeslgn Award 

Grand P1lze Winner \New Constrnctlon Category) 

2010 Design Awol1ds Competition !Philadelphia) 

Public Services Development 

Facllityofl.4e,it 

Green GOOD Oulgn Awards 

AwardsofMerl t.PubllcandtnstitutlonalSpaces 

LegacyMeri1Award 

Sports Category Winner 

Best Pub~c Services Development Canada 

Gold Medal Award 

Distinction Award 

BestoftheBest•AtrossCanada 
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APPENDIX C- 2023 ATHLETE ACHIEVEMENTS 

Badminton 

PrivateTrcilnlng 
Tha!iaSe 

Basketball 

Cob,asU16Glrls I ZoeMiUete 

PEAK t.1arcih Oykslrci 

Field Hockey 

U18Nationa1Team I NadineBrennlnkmeyer,Wynn 
Brown.Stella Goddard-Despot, 
Undsey Hms. Stella Malinowski 
Ryr.e Novak. Geo,gla Reyoolds 
Ella Rideout.Calista Schwanz. 
Kieraklason 

RgureSkatmg 

Emly Amot. Oli\.'11 Bodel. 
Mack.!!nnaBrownAIK;eCampbell. 
Rayne0haliwa1. Lyd!aHerrington. 
Sul!hman Kai.I' Hundal. CanYyn 
Jensen.Allelavi5,MaoefynPotts. 
Sunon Van Dy%. Amefe l.eguillou~ 

Athle1eAwa1ds 

U15 National Championship 

U19W011dCup 

U18Natlona1Team 

U1 6 tlatlona1 TeamCEC 
BoulderlngandDifflcuttyYoll\h 
Natlonals. 2022 

Connaught Figure TravisTreng. Tr.MsTreng. Tetvynlee Challenge Cup 
Skating 

loonaChet\ /,~StLB't.Vd<yPari ChallengeCup 

KaeliWoo. TlannaU 

Gabrl4!1 Blumenthal Uam K;ipelkls 

Emilar Millard. Amy Shao N/ng 
Yang. Melody Zhu 

\ViWlam Chall. David LI, Neo Tr.in, 
David Howes 

CMsonChow,.>.nJGim, TristanTan 

MllchellDunn 

LtamK;ipelkls 

Wesley Chiu 

Gabr!elBlumenLha\ 

AmyShaoNing'fang 

Melody Zhu 

Challenge Cup 

Challenge Cup 

Challenge Cup 

Challenge Cup 

Challenge Cup 

Challenge Cup 

Challenge Cup 

ISU SGP Sl<.Jle America 
ISU SGP Grand Pri1 Fronce 
C11n.1d"111nChamplonshlps 
ISUWortdJurilorChamplonshlps 

Canadian Championships 

BCSectiona1Champlonshlps 
Skene Canada ChaUenge 
Canad/an Championships 

acsecUona\Champlonshlps 
SkateC;madaChallenge 

Nom:natedb-/ Bmwlt~BCas-k 
Fenu!eAtweteoflheyea, 

Athlete Competed 

AthletesSelectodtoRoste, 

A1hletesSelected 10Roster 

Novice Team BC 

NoviceGlilsTeamBC 

PreNovlceGl,ts TeamBC 

Senlor M1mTeamBC 

Senior Women Team BC 

BC IWL DL NT}. Team 
Manlloba(DH) 

Pre-Novice Boys Team BC 

Novice Pairs 

Represented USA al Skate 
Canadalnternatlonal 

Athlete Competed 
Athlete Competed 
J,dPlace-Senlo, Meos 
6th Place Finish 

Athlete Competed 

lstPlace•Senlo,Udles 
2nd Place-SenlorUdies 
Al.hleteCompeled 

JrdP!ace-Senlorlad!es 
Athlete Competed 

""' 
Jull&-20 

Feb2J 

Fob23 

Nov23 

Nov2J 

Nov23 

Nov23 

Nov23 

Deel 

Ocl 20-22 
NovJ-5 
Jan9-15 
r~ov 3-5 

Jan9-15 

Nov9- 12 
Nov29-0ec3 
Jan9-15 

Nov9-12 
Nov29-Dec3 

Neo Tran 

WinlamChan 

lloMaChon 

Louie Fukuda Wu 

EmllyU.to 

VtckyPan 

UamKape11,J5 

Davey Howes 

JessleSuno gM,tcheU Dunn 

Ice Hockey 

Greatorvancowe, I UlBTeam 
Canadlaos 

U17Team 

Q RkhmondResident 

BCSectlonal Champlonshlps 
Cariadian Champ!o~hlps 

BC Sectional Championships 
Skate Canada Challenge 
Canadian Championships 
ISU Coup Do Pf in temps 

Ska10CanadaChaMenoe 
BCSectlonal Champlonst1lps 

Canada Winter Games 
Skatet:.inadaChallenge 
BC Sectional Championships 

Canada Winter Games 
Skate Canada Ch.denge 
Prov1nclals 

Cenada Winter Games 
Skate Canada Challenge 
BC Sectional Championships 

SGP Skate America 

3rdPtace-Jun.lorMon 
Athlete Competed 

Athlete Competed 
J1dPlace-tlovicet.1en 
Athlete Competed 
2nd Place-Advanced Notice 

Al:h1eteCompeted 
Athlete Competed 

2ndPlace-P,e•NoviceMen 
JrdPlace- Pre-NovlceMen 
1s1Place-Pre•l~oviceMen 

Al:hleteCompeled 
Alh1e1eCompeted 
l stf>lece-Pre-Nov,ce l adles 

Athlete Competed 
Athlete Competed 
2ndPlace-Pre-Novlcelitdies 

A!hleteCompe1ed 
ISUlceCha11engeGrci! lstPlai::e 
UlltedStiltesl~~ AlhleteCompeted 
ISUFourContnents~ps Ath~ teCompeted 

Canadian Championships 

CanadianChamp;onshlps 
C.m.11da Wmter Games 
SkateCanadaCtian,ngo 
Provinclals 

BCEHLP/ayoffs 

BCEHLPlayoffs 

Camp invitations ♦ 

t.laccabl Games 

2ndPlace 

lst Place 

lstP11ce 
Athletes Competed 
Athletes Competed 
1 stPl■ce 

Nov9-12 
Jan9-1S 

Nov9•12 
Jan25-28 
Jan9-15 
tAar17-19 

Jan25•28 
Nov9-12 

Fob18-l.1ar5 
Jan25-2B 
Nov9•12 

Feb1B 
Jan25 

Jan25-28 
Nov9•12 
Oct20-22 

Dct20-22 
Nov7•12 
Jan23-29 
Feb7-12 

Jan9-l5 
Feb18-Mar5 
Jan25-28 

Mar 
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SpeedSkatng 

OvalH',gh 
Performance 
SpeedSka!lng 

SportClomb,ng 

Oval High 

Per formance 
Sport Climbing 

PaulAstor,RoananTien-VidalO. 
Norn Wagner and Gabrielle 
Oetomo 

OanlelJin. 

A,ya"""'-
HealhKemetl 
Aa!01'1Uu Q 

GabrietteOetomo. 

NoraW~. 
AndyUu o 
Nioo!eLaw. 
SimonMikulash, 

DanielU O 
TllrnanAstor 

RoananTieo-Vidal O.PaulA.stor, 
tllcole I.aw, Gabrlelle Oetomo, 
NoraWagnef 

DanlelJin, 

HeathKeonelL 
TilrnanAstor, 
AeronUu o . 
Arya Jahns 

Roanan Tien·VldalO. Nora Wagoer, 
HealhKeooettSophlaCalro· 
Martklez.hyaJahns.KalBarneu 

Connor Masoo-BeMeU. 
SophlaCairo-Mart,nez. 
ArjenSanders 

Canada Winter 
Games 

BC Short Track 
Champlo~h,ps 

Canada Cup 
J1.mlorFln.al 

C.inVou\hWesl 
Championships 

NeoJunior 
and JunlOf 
Championships 

BC Short Track 
Jamplonshlps 

Athletes Competed 

l stPLace- lAale12Dwlsion 
2ndP11ce-Female1201vislon 
1stPlace- M13 

2nd P1ace-M13 
151 Place• Female NeoJU'l!or 
2nd Place• Female NeoJ1.1nlor 
2nd Piece - Male NeoJunlor 
l stPlace-FemateJunlo, 
1st Place- Male Junior 
]rd Place-Male Junior 
4thPace-lA1 3 dMslon 

Athletes competed 

2ndPl.aceOvera1t•12M 
SthPlaceOl'l!r.111-Youlh ll - 13 
31dP1ace-Youth 13MDivislon 
Athletes Competed 
Athletes Competed 

Athletes Competed 

Connor - 2nd Place - Open M.Jle OlvislOfl 
Sophla-lrdPlace- OpenFemaJeOl..,;wn 

Bruce Kongo , Nathan WordenO CEC Speed NaUonals Athletes Competed 

AshlevKamO.SeleneWordenO, 
Na1.a1,e Hsu 0 . Bnlce Kongo . 
F,anclne King 0 . Jayden MIiano , CEC Bouldering and Oill!curty 

Natasha WoogO, Noah Schwanz. Yooth Nationals 
NathanWordenO,tynnSh.angO. 
Dal'ldG.JoO 

Athletes Competed 

JaydenMildnO CECYoulhwestemReg.'ooals Athletes Competed 

Ashier KamO. Se!ena\\'ofdeno . 
Uatai.e Hsu 0 . Bnxe Kongo . 
FrancineKir,gO,Jayd&nMilanQ, 

Netasha Wong.O Noah Schwartz. 
Nath.lnWOfdenO, LyM ShangO. 
D.MdGaoO,Jakobl,lefneO. 
JaelynetuigO 

Bruce Kongo 

NathanWorclenO,Sel&na 
Wordeno . Marco LIO. Jakob 
MennieO 

Natalie Hsuo . Selena Wordeno 

CECYouth Natlonats, 
Boulde,lngondO.lflcultr 

20231FSCYO\llhWor1d 
Championships.Speed 
Climb!ng 

NorthAme1lcanC1.1pSerle.s 

CEC Senior Lead and 
BoulderlngNaUonals 

Athletes Competed 

Athletes Competed 

Athletes Competed 

Athletes Competed 

Feb16-2S 

Ma1 17•19 

Nov 17-18 

FeblB 

May 18·23 

Aug 18-27 

••• 

Table Tennis 

PflvateTrainlog lvyUao 

Volleyball 

USC Thunderbirds 
I 

LucyBorowskl.Ellzabelh Lee O. 
' KaterlnaPantovlc.CarnKovacs 

REP JessleH1.1ang.VJYlanVandergaag 

Team Canada 

GabflelaFrandsen,Lo11lsaCassidy, 
Fern Buckley 

tou,saGassidy,Vrvlanvan­

dergaag. Jessie Huang. Molly 
O'B1len 

toulsa Gassldy 

AII Ralh!ef 

OIMaFestiog 

SofiaSe~hortJuHet Frandsen 

NadiaTayk)r 

lsabella\Vaterta" 

Gabr!elafrandsen 

Ave1yCaradoMa. 
OIMa W1n s1ock 

, Avery Caradonna 

tucyeo,owski 

Wo 111en'sNatlonal Te11111 

WheelcharBasketball 

OVAL HP Strength Tara LJanes 
and Conditioning 

Pan American Games 
Pan American Championships 
fTTF World Ch<lmpionships 
ITTF Ml led Team Wo1ld Cup 

USports /J atlonals 

16U BCProvlnclals 

16UBCProvinclals 

Team BC High Perfo1mance Se!ectlon 

Camp 

C.inadaCup 

Canad.!I Cup 

AA South Fraser Championships 

Grade9SouthFra5111Championships 

ASoulhFraserCharrplonsh'ps 

AAAA South Fr.1s.er Championships 

AA Pr01Jinclal Championships 

AA Provincial Championships 

AA Pro..,;ncla\Champlonships 

VolleybaM Canada tlext Gen Team 

FIVB Women'sNatlonas t eague 
NORCECA Continent al Championships 

ParnPanAmeilcanGames 
2022 IWBF WOfld Championships 

0 Richmond Resident 

Athlete Competed 
Athlete Competed 
Athlete Com peted 
Alh!e teCompeted 

lstPlace 

l stP1ace•Oivislonl 

JrdPlace-Oivlslon 1 

AthletesSelectedtoAnend 
TeamBC Ul 6C11mp 

Athlete Selected for Team 
BCU l 6 

AthleteSelected to, Team 
BC UIB 

lstPrace 

1stP111ce 

l stPlace 

1stPlace 

Best libero 

Ath1eteSeleciedforTeam 

Fln!shed lOthPrace 
31dPlace 

Sliver Medal 
SthPlaceFinlsh 

0ct20·NOY5 
0ct20·NOY5 
May20-28 
Dec4• 10 

May5-6 

MayS-6 

Jul7-12 

Nov15 

tlov21 

Oec2 

SepS·lO 

Nov \7 -26 

Jun9·20 
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APPENDIX D - 2023 HP FACILITY AND SERVICE USER GROUPS 

LotalSportOrganizat1on 

AJrA1t.ackVolleyball 

AchlUes lll!emaUonal Track A Reid Society 

Asahi Baseball Team 

AURA Rhythmic Gymr.astlc.s 

BrazilianSocce1School 

Calholic lndependen\ Schools Vancower Athlet,cs 

DeltaGymnastlcsSoc!ety 

Corv1aughtRgureSkatlng 

Drive Basketball 

EliteGoallesCanada 

fusionFC 

Greate, Varotouver Canadians Hockey Club 

Kajaks Track&Fleld 

Non-Contact Hockey league 

Les!ieGlobalSports 

PmnacieChee1 

Richmond Arenas Community Association 

Richmond Adult Soccer A$$ocia1Jon 

Richmond Rockets 

R•chmondSchoolOis11lct 

Split Second Basketball 

Sekish111kan\Shoselkan1Kara1e 

Supra Soccer Academy 

Thunde1VolleyballClub 

TOCAFutsal 

Thl.Jlld!I Rowing/ UBC Boathouse 

Total Soccer 

TSSFootba!IC!ub 

Vancowei Angels Female Hockey Assoc!allon 

VantoUVerKJSocJety 

VancouverMe110LeaguesBasketball 

West Coast Can•Am Martial Arts 

Vanco1Ner Handball Club 

Vanco1Ne1 Thunde11>11d Hockey 

Richmond Jets Mino, Hoc.key Association 

Wings Badminton 

CitlusTableTennlsClub 

Uit>anRec 

PfDvmc1alSportO,gamzatron 

Basketball BC 

BCAthlellcs 

BC Hockey 

BC Games Society 

BCSchoolSporls 

BC Taekwondo Federallon 

BCSpeedSkatlngAssoclat/on 

BC Wheelchall Basketba~ Society 

BC Wheelchair Floorbal Association 

BC Wheelchair Sports Association 

RingetteBC 

Sportabl~ty 

BCRhy1hmlcGymnastlcsFederatlon 

BCWre5\llng 

Karate BC 

Speed Skating BC 

SportCUmblngBC 

TableTeml5North 

Volleyball BC 

Nat10na!SportOrgamzat1on 

c r;mblngEscaladeCanada 

WhealchairBasketbahCanada 

Wheelcha!t Rugby Canada 

FleldHockeyCanada-Men'sSr.&Jr. 

ReldHockeyCanada-Women'sNe~t Gen& TAP 

SpeedSkallngCanada 

Paral~mplc Foundation of Canada 

Gymnastics Canada 

Table Tennis Canada 

CanadianFunctfonalFitnessFederatlon 

Bocc,aCan.ada 

Karate Canada 

Volleyball Canada 

F,eesty1eCanada 

Whealchal1 Curling c.an.ada 

Welghtl ifUngCanada 

APPENDIX E - MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Management's discussion and analysis provides an overview of the 
• Corporation's business operations for the year ended December 

31, 2023 relative to the year ended December 31, 2022. 

This management's discussion and analysis should be read in 
conjunction with the Corporation's audited nnancial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the accompanying 
notes. The financial statements are prepared in acco1dance with 

Canacfian generally accepted accounling principles (GAAPI as 
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSABJ or the 
Chartered Professional Accountants Canada. 

About the corporation 

The Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation (the "Corporation") was 
lnc0<porated oo June 16, 2008 under the Business Corporations 
Act of British Columbia as a municipal corporation wholly-owned 
by the City of Richmond (the "City"). The Corporation's objecti'ves 
with respect to the long-term use arid operation of the Richmond 
Olympic Oval facility (the ·o...an include but are not limited to the 

following: a) the Oval will be developed, used and promoted for a 
training and competition facility for high performance sport b) the 
Oval will provide facilities, programs and services for quality sport 
frtness, recreational uses and wellness services for the Richmond 
community, neighbou,tng communities and the general public; 

c) the Oval will provide facilities for non-sporting, community 
and entertainment events; and d} the Oval will provide ancillary 
commercial retail, health and wellness services to enhance its use 

in respect of the activities set out above. 

The Corporation operates ln a highly competitive sport and ntness 
market which offers personal training, group frtness classes. high 
performance training, yoga. wellness, weight training and sport 

spec inc facilities. The C0<poration also hosts many local and 
national events and also has various open spaces and rooms \vhich 
are available for rent to the public. In addition, the Corporation 
also operates an Olympic muselNTI and a retail store as part of lhe 
overan services offered 10 lhe pubflc. 

Overview of Performance 

REVENUE 

2023 revenue from memberships, admissions and prngrams 
totalled$ 10.151,000 (2022 - SB.0•19,000). In 2023, revenue from 

these sources of $ 1,322,000 was deferred to nscal 2024 (2022 -
$1,061,000 was deferred to 2023). 

The City applies for and receives funding ftom l he 2010 Games 
Operating Trust ("GOT") as e,;plalned In note 6 to the nnanclal 
statements, The City received $4,136.000 during the year 
which was recognized as revenue earned in the year (2022 -
$4,212,000). 

The Corporation received a contribution of $3,904.000 from the 
City in 2023 (2022 • SJ,754,000), 

Other revenue of S2,987,000 was recognized in 2023 (2022 -
$1,557,000) and mainly consisted of parking, leasing, interest 
and capi tal funding revenue. 

EXPENSES 

During 2023. expenses were incurred for the following: 

• Salaries and benefits of $12,046,000 (2022 • $10,396.000). 
There were appro,;imately 70 full-time. and 273 part-time 
employees on the payroll as of December 31, 2023; {2022- 69 
full-time and 253 part-time employees); 

• Other operating expenses incurred in 2023 totalled $7,155,000 
12022 - $6,448,000) and mainly Included the fo llowing: 

• Facility operations of the Oval Including the heat. light and 
power, and building maintenance; 

• Amortization costs of tangible capltal assets; 

• Propertyandliabllityinsurance: 

• Costs associated with running and marketing the Oval 
programs and rentals of facilities; 

• Administration costs re lated to accounting, Information 
technology, development of organizational infras tructure 
such as safety programs. internal controls, ofnce supplies 
and equipment support. human resource potlcles, etc.; 

• Costs associated wi th running and servicing Oval 
pmgrams;and 

• Professional fees mainly related to legal and accounting fees. 

The annual surplus for 2023 was $1,977,000(2022 • $727,000). 
The total accumulated surplus as of December 31, 2023 is 

S21,472,000(2022 • $ 19,495.000). Please refer to note 10 to 
the nnancial statement notes for the details of the accumulated 
surplus balance. 
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Summary of Financial Position 

The following table presents summary information on the 
Corporation's financia l position at December 31 , 2023. 

$000s ---- ----
RnancialAssets 

Liabilities 

Net Financial assets 

Non- Financiatassets 

Accumulated surplus 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

2023 

$17,286 

10 .759 

$6,527 

$14,945 

$2 1.472 

The Corporation has a cash balance of $ 1, 122,000 at 

2022 

$16,723 

11 ,753 

$4,970 

$ 14,525 

$ 19,495 

year end (2022- $1,744,000). The investments balance is 

$14,850,000 (2022 - Sl 4,207,000). The investments represent 

the Corporation's investments held in term deposits. The 

accounts receivable aggregating $1,009,000 (2022 - $595,000) 

resulted primarily from the sates o f memberships, admissions, 

programs, rentals and from interest receivable. lnyentories held 

for resale of $185,000 (2022 • $160,000) primarily consists of 

merchandise and products to be sold. The amount due from the 

City of $119,000 (2022 - $17,000 due from the Cityl arises in the 

normal course of operations. 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities of S1,430,000 (2022 -
$2,267,000) primarily include payroll accruals, and trade payables 

for heat. light. power, building maintenance expenditu1es, legal 

and audit fees. Post-employment benefits of S1, 185,000 (2022 
• S900,000) are benefit obligations accrued based on projected 

benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to 

earn the future benefits. Deferred revenue of SB. 132,000 (2022 
• $8,578.000) includes unspent funding pertaining to the Sport 

Hosting department, the Richmond Olympic Experience project. 

the Fields project, sponsorship fees, and the pfO rata portion 

of fees received In 2023 for membership and programs to be 

deliYered In 2024. A rental deposit of $ 12,000 (2022 - $7,000) is 

held as of the end of the year, 

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

As at December 31, 2023, the Corporation had S30.630,000 
(2022 • $28,664,0001 of capital assets primarily pertaining to 

athletic equipment, building improvements, computer software 

and equipment. facility equipment, infrastructure and assets 

relating to the Richmond Olympic Experience project, the 

Mezzanine Infill project. and the Flelds project. Amortization 

for the year was S1,729,000 (2022 - $1,782,000). Accumulated 

amortization o f the capita l assets amounted to $16,047,000 
(2022 • $14,336.000) at year end. 

Prepaid expenses of $363,000 (2022 • $ 197,000) includes 

unamortized portions of t he premiums on the Corporation's 

insurance policies together with prepaid information technology 

licencesandequipmentmalntenance. 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 

The Corporation has an authorized share capital consisting of 

an unlimited number of common shares without par value. One 

sha re has been issued to the Corporation's parent. the City. 

The capital reserve balance is $1 1,586,000 (2022 • $9,846.000), 
other reserves/provisions Is $774,000 (2022 • $1,167,000), 
accumulated operating surplus Is $607,000 (2022 • S610.000), 
and the amount invested in tangible capital assets ls S8,503,000 
{2022 - $7,872,000) for a total accumulated surplus balance of 

$21,472,000 (2022 - $19,495,000). 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

OPERATING 

Cash provided by operations In the year amounted to 

$2,006,000 {2022 - $6,980,000), 

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES 

The Corporation purchased $ 1,984,000 12022 - $3,966,000) 
of capita l assets primari ly consisting of sport and fi tness 

equipment. building improvements, Information technology, 

facility equipment and infrastruc ture and assets relating to the 

Richmond Olympic Experience project and the Fields project. 

RELATED PART Y TRANSACTIONS 

The Corporation is a municipal corporation w holly-owned by 

the City. Note 12 to l he financial statements discloses rela ted 

party transactions. 

APPENDIX F -AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Financial Statements o f 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL 
CORPORATION 

And Independent Audilo(s Report thereon 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

CNCL - 52 
(Special)



46 

KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1 K3 
Canada 
Telephone 604 691 3000 
Fax 604 691 3031 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Shareholder of Richmond Olympic Oval C°'poralion 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation (the "COJporation"). which 
comprise: 

the statement or financial position as at December 31, 2023 

the statement of operations for the year then ended 

the statement of changes ln nel financial assels for the year then ended 

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

(herelnafler referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial s1a1ements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position or the Corporation as at December 31, 2023, and its results or operations, its changes in net financial 

assets and its cash flows ror the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 

standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are rurther described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements' section of our auditor's report. 

We are Independent or the Corporation in accordance with lhe ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili ties in 

accordance with lhese requirements. 

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises: 

the information, other than the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon, included in the 2023 

annual report. 

Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
Page 2 

Our opinion on the financlal statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will nol 

express any form or assurance conclusion !hereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

ldentined above and, In doing so, consider whether the other Information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial slatements or our knowledge obtained In the audit and remain alert for Indications thal the other 

Information appears to be materially misstated. 

We obtained the information, other than the financial statements and the auditor's report thereon, included in 

the 2023 annual report as at the date of this auditor's report. 

If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material 

misstalemenl of this other Information, we are required to report that fact in the auditor's report. 

We have nothing to report In this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation or the nnancial stalements in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of nnanclal statements that are free from materfal 

misstalemenl, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the nnanclal slatements, management is responsible ror assessing the Corporation's abilily to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters relaled lo going concern and using the going 

concern basis or accounting unless management eilher intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In 

accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exisls. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected 10 in0uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 

financia l statements. 

As part or an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
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Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
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We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or errOf, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence lhat is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fOf our opinion. 

The risk of nol detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding or internal conlrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
eHectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern. II 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including the 
disclosures, and whether these financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mailers, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
conlrol that we Identify during our audit. 

Chartered Proressional Accountants 

Vancouver. Canada 
April 24, 2024 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement or Financial Position 

December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 

Financia l Assets 

Cash 
Investments (note 4) 
Accounts and other receivable 
Due from City of Richmond (note 5) 
Inventories held for resale 

Liabi lities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Post-employment benefits (note 7) 
Deferred revenue (note 8) 
Rental deposits 

Net financial assets 

Non-Financial Assets 

Tangible capital assets (note 9) 
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 

Economic dependence (note 14) 

Accumulated surplus (note 1 0) 

See accompanying notes to financial slatements. 

Approved on behalf or the Board: 

$ 

2023 2022 

1,122,442 1,743,783 
14,850,000 14,206,580 

1,009,382 595,183 
118,603 16,968 
185,275 160,232 

17,285,702 16,722,746 

1,430,334 2,266,613 
1,1 85,300 900,458 
8,132,049 8,578,270 

11,781 7,373 
10,759,464 11,752,714 

6,526,238 4,970,032 

14,582,577 14,327,807 
362,771 196,972 

14,945,348 14,524,779 

21,471 ,586 $ 19,494,811 

Director ---'?9--v'-=8=-"---'"-- Director 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION RICHMOND OL VMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Operations Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022 

2023 Bud et 2023 2022 2023 Bud et 2023 2022 
(Note2(h)) (Note2{h)) 

Revenue: Annual surplus (deficit), for the year $ (226,826) 1,976,775 727,186 
2010 Games Operating Trust Fund (note 6) 3,725,000 $ 4,136,315 $ 4,212,071 
Contribution from City of Richmond (note 12(a)) 3,903,713 3,903,713 3,754,292 Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,205,000) (1,983,622) (3,966,248) 
Memberships, admissions and programs 8,379,797 10,150,651 8,048,501 
Other revenue (note 16) 2,405,931 2,986,657 1,556,569 

Loss on sate of tangible capital assets 1,609 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 809 

18,414,441 21,177,336 17,571,433 Amortization of tangible caeital assets 2,500,000 1,728,852 1,782,243 
295,000 (254,770) {2,181,587) 

Expenses: 
Salaries and benefits 11,128,078 12,045,966 10,396,266 
UUlities 1,002,316 1,045,226 954,149 
Amortizatlon 2,500,000 1,728,852 1,782,243 

Acquisition of prepaid expenses and other deposits {1,174,182) (415,822) 
Use of ereeaid exeenses and other deeosils 1,008,383 921,150 

Supplies and equipment 1,030,579 1,001,330 863,286 
Insurance 740,400 697,986 620,064 

Change in net financial assets 6B,174 1,556,206 (949,073) 

General and administration 883,347 808,350 827,767 
Marketing 156,388 156,995 162,782 

Net financial assets, beginning of year 4,970,032 4,970,032 5,919,105 

Program services 1,142,599 1,572,920 1,188,153 
Professional fees 57,560 142,936 49,537 Net financial assets, end of lear 5,038,206 6,526,238 $ 4,970,032 

18,641,267 19,200,561 16,844,247 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Annual surplus (deficit) (226,826) 1,976,775 727,186 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 19.494,811 19,494,811 18,767,625 

Accumulated surelus, end of lear $19,267,985 $ 21,471,586 $ 19,494,811 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative Information for 2022 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Annual surplus 
Items not Involving cash: 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Loss on sale or tangible capital assets 

Changes in non-cash operating items 
Accounts receivable 
Due from the City of Richmond 
Inventories held for resale 
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Post-employment benefits 
Deferred revenue 
Rental de osits 

Capital activities: 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 

Investing activities: 
Net purchase of investments 

Increase (decrease) In cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2023 

1,976,775 

1,728,852 

(414,199) 
(101,635) 

(25,043) 
(165,799) 
(836,279) 
284,842 

(446,221) 
4,408 

2,005,701 

(1,983,622) 

(1,983,622) 

(643,420) 

(621,341) 

1,743,783 

1,122,442 

2022 

727,186 

1,782,243 
1,609 

(263,271) 
(25,483) 
(20,666) 

505,328 
1,054,523 

264,898 
2,953,905 

6,980,272 

(3,966,248) 
809 

(3,965,439) 

(2,629,686) 

385,147 

1,358,636 

1,743,783 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

1. Incorporation and nature of business: 

The Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation (the "Corporation") was incorporated on June 16, 2008 
under the Business Corporations Acl of British Columbia as a municipal corporation wholly-owned 
by the City of Richmond (lhe "City1. The business of the Corporation is to use the Richmond 
Olympic Oval facility (the "Oval") to provide a venue for a wide range of sports, business and 
community activities, including, but not limited to, being the long-track speed skating venue ror 
the 201 o Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games (the "Games"). 

2. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of presentation: 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector 
Accounting Standards. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Memberships, admissions and programs fees are recorded as revenue in the period that the 
services are rendered, with any unearned portion recorded as deferred revenue. Annual 
distributable amounts and trust income amounts are recognized as revenue when the amounts 
are approved by the 201 o Games Operating Trust (note 6) and when the related operating 
expenses and capital maintenance costs of the Oval are incurred. Any amounts received but 
not yet spent are recognized as deferred revenue. 

Sponsorship revenues are deferred and amortized to revenue over the term of sponsorship 
agreements. 

Restricted contribulions are deferred and recognized as revenue when the resources are used 
for the purposes specified by the related agreement. 

(cl Financial Instruments: 

Financial instruments include cash, investments, accounts receivable, and accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities. 

Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Equity instruments and 
derivatives that are quoted in an active market are subsequently recorded at fair value as at 
the reporting date. All other financlal Instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or 
amortized cost unless management elects to carry the instruments at fair value. The Oval has 
not elected to carry any other f1nanclal Instruments at fair value. 

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized on the Statement of Remeasurement Gains 
and Losses. They are recorded in the Statement of Operations when they are realized. There 
are no unrealized changes in fair value as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022. 
As a result, the Oval does not have a Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial Instruments recorded at cost and 
are expensed as incurred. 

Sales and purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Financial instruments (continued): 

Accounts receivables, investments, and accounts payable and accrued !iabllities, are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is 
determined lo be other than temporary, the amount of the loss ls reported in the Statement of 
Operations. 

(d) Non.financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the 
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are nol 
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

(i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are initially recorded at cost. Amortization is provided on a 
straight-line basis at rates that reflect estimates of the economic lives of the assets over 
the following periods: 

Assets 

Athletic equipment 
Building Improvements 
Computer software and equipment 
Facility equipment 
Infrastructure 
Signage 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 
Tenant improvements 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 

Rate 

5 - 10years 
5years 
3years 
3years 

40years 
3years 

l0years 
Term of the lease 

3years 

Work in progress assets are not amortized until the asset is available for use. 

(ii1 Impairment of tanglble capita! assets: 

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer 
contribute to the Corporation's ability to provide goods and services, or when the value 
of future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their 
net book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the statement of 
operations. 

(e) Pension plan: 

The Corporation and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan {the 
"Plan"), As the Plan ls a multi-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan, these 
contributions are expensed as incurred. 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) lncometaxes: 

The Corporation Is not subject to income taxes as it is a municipal corporation wholly-owned 
by the City. 

(g) Functional and object reporting: 

The operations of the Corporation are comprised of a single function, which includes 
provision of sports, fitness, and recreation services. As a result, the expenses of the 
Corporation are presented by object in the statement of operations, 

(h) Budget data: 

The budget data presenIed in these financial statements is based upon the 2023 budget 
approved by the Board of Directors on January 17, 2023. 

(i) Measurement uncertainty: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that could affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Areas requiring the 
use of management estimates relate to the determination of valuation of accounts recelvab!e 
and useful Uves of tangible capital assets for amortization. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. The estimates are reviewed periodically and as adjustments become 
necessary, they are recorded in surplus (deficit) in the year in which they become known. 

OJ Government transfers: 

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue as the 
related expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met. 
Unrestricted transfers are recognized as revenue when received or if the amount to be 
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

(k) Post-employment benefits: 

Post-employment benefits accrue to the Corporation's employees. The liabilities related to 
these benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of reliremenl 
ages and expected future salary and wage increases, The liabilities under these benefits 
plans are accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services 
necessary to earn the future benefits. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Flnancial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

3. Adoption or new accounting standards: 

(a) PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations: 

On January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard 
PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations. An asset retirement obligation is recognized when, as 
at the financial reporting date, all of the following criteria are met 

(i) There is a legal obligation lo incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 

(ii) The past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 

{iii) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and, 

(iv) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

The estimate or the asset retirement obligation includes costs directly attributable to the asset 
retirement activities and is recorded as a liability. As at December 31, 2023, the Corporation 
determined that there are no asset retirement obligations associated with its tangible capital 
assets and hence, the adoption or this standard did not have any impact on the amounts 
presented in these financial statements. 

(b) PS 3450 Financial Instruments and related standards: 

On January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard 
PS 3450 Financial lnslrUments, PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS 1201 Financial 
Statement Presentation and PS 3041 Portfolio Investments. Under PS 3450 Financial 
Instruments, all financial instruments are included on 1he statement of financial position and 
are measured at either fair value or amortized cost based on the characteristics or the 
instrument and the Corporation's accounting policy choices (see note 2(c)). 

The adoption of lhese standards did not have any impact on the amounts presented in these 
flnancialstaternents. 

4. Investments: 

Investments represent tenn deposits as follows: 

Purchase date Maturity date 2023 2022 

April 24, 2023 April 24, 2024 $ 5,000,000 
June 27, 2023 June 27, 2024 600,000 
July 21, 2023 January 22, 2024 2,500,000 
July 21, 2023 July 22, 2024 5,000,000 
December 7, 2023 April 8, 2024 1,750,000 
July 14, 2022 July 14, 2023 3,987,0BB• 
July 19, 2022 July 19, 2023 3,619,492' 
December 21, 2022 April 21, 2023 6,000,000 
December 29, 2022 May 1, 2023 600,000 

$ 14,850,000 $ 14,206,580 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

4. Investments (continued): 

The Interest rate of the term deposits ranges from 5.66% to 6.30% {2022. 5.05% to 5.22%). 

• Investments held by the City of Richmond on behalf of the Corporation, with income earned 
fully attributable to the Corporation. 

5. Due from City of Richmond: 

The amounts due from the City of Richmond arise in the normal course of business and are 
unsecured, and non-interest bearing with no stated repayment terms. 

6. 2010 Games Operating Trust Fund: 

On November 14, 2002, under the terms of the Multiparty Agreement for the Games, the 
Government of Canada and the Province of British Columbia agreed to establish the Legacy 
Endowment Fund (the "Fund") and to each contribute $55 million. On March 31, 2004, under the 
terms of the 2010 Games Operating Trust Agreement ("GOT"), an irrevocable trust was created 
known as GOT and the 2010 Games Operating Trust Society (the "Society") became the trustee 
of the Fund. The purpose of the Fund is to fund operating expenses and capital maintenance 
costs of certain facllities created for lhe Games, specifically the Oval and the Whistler Sllding 
Centre and Nordic Centre, and to assist with the continued development of amateur sport in 
Canada. Subsequent to the formation of the GOT, the City, as owner of the Oval, became a 
beneficiary of the GOT and became responslble for complying with obligations set by the Society 
and GOT In order to receive funding. 

Effective December 31, 2007: 

{a) the Society Board divided the Fund into three funds: the Speed Skating Oval Fund: the 
Whistler Sliding Centre and Nordic Centre Fund; and the Contingency Fund; and 

{b) the Society Board divided the capital and any accumulated but undistributed income of the 
Fund as follows: Speed Skating Oval Fund (40%); Whisller Sliding Centre and Nordic 
Centre Fund (40%); and the Contingency Fund (20%). 

Effective April 21, 2009, the City entered into an agreement with the Vancouver Organizing 
Committee for the 2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games ("VANOC"). The agreement 
details the terms and conditions to which the City Is required to adhere in order to receive funding 
from GOT. Effective September 1, 2011, VANOC assigned the agreement to the Society. 

Funds from GOT are paid to the City first and the City distributes the funds to the Corporation. 
Revenue from GOT is comprised of: 

2023 2022 

2022 annual distributable amount approve and received in 2023 $ 4,136,315 
2021 annual distributable amount approve and received in 2022 4,212,071 

4,136,315 $ 4,212,071 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Flnanclal Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

7. Post-employment benefits: 

The Corporation provides certain post-employment benefits, non-vested sick !eave, compensated 
absences, and termination benefits to its employees. 

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 
Opening adjustment due to actuarial valuation, January 1, 2023 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 

2023 

900,458 
206,542 

84,300 
47,700 

(53,700) 

1,185,300 

An actuarial valuatlon for these benefits was performed to determine the Corporation's accrued 
benefil obligation as at December 31, 2023. This actuarial gain ls being amortized over a period 
equal to the employees' expected average remaining service lifetime of 11-years. 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 
Unamortized net actuarial gain 

Accrued benefit liability, end of year 

2023 

1,185,300 

$ 1,185,300 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the Corporation's accrued benefit obligation are as 
follows: 

Discount rate 
Expected future inflation rate 
Expected wage and salary range Increases 

a. Deferred revenue: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Add: amounts received 
Less: revenue recognized 

Balance, end of year 

2023 

S 8,578,270 
12,691,087 

(13,137,308) 

$ 8,132,049 

2023 

4.10% 
2.50% 

2.50% to 3.00% 

2022 

$ 5,624,365 
12,558,975 
{9,605,070) 

$ 8,578,270 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

8, Deferred revenue (continued): 

Deferred revenue comprises of: 

Memberships and programs 
Sponsorship fees 
Sport Hosting funding (note 12(b)) 
Richmond Olympic Experience (note 12(b)) 
The Fields (a) 

2023 2022 

$ 1,322,166 
28,226 

664,897 
3,526,038 
2,590,722 

1,061,065 
28,226 

817,964 
3,638,995 
3,032,020 

8,132,049 $ 8,578,270 

{a) The Fields is a year-round outdoor activity space for sports programs and events. As at 
December 31, 2023, $2,590,722 of the funds restricted for The Fields remain in deferred 
revenue and the revenue will be recognized based on the terms specified by the related 
agreements. 

9. Tangible capila\ assets: 

Balance Balance 
December 31, December 31, 

Cost 2022 Additions Dis~sals 2023 

Athletic equipment $ 4,383,290 $ 1,092,879 S (17,213) S 5.458,956 
Building Improvements 3,125,675 195,862 3,321,537 
Computer software and equipment 3,696,811 173,510 3,870,321 
Facility equipment 1,535,247 145,512 1,680,759 
Infrastructure 5,880,940 4,937,378 10,818,318 
Signage 195,542 23,115 218,657 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 3,884,306 793,768 4,678,074 
Tenant Improvements 65,729 65,729 
Uniforms, lee skates and helmets 399,227 18,486 417,713 
Work in progress 5,496,888 (5,396,888) 100,000 

S 28,663,655 $ 1,983,622 $ (17,213) $ 30,630,064 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

9. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

Accumulated amortization 

Athletic equipment 
Building improvements 
Computer software and equipment 
Facility equipment 
Infrastructure 
Slgnage 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 
Tenant improvements 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 

Athletic equipment 
Building improvements 
Computer software and equipment 
Facility equipment 
Infrastructure 
Signage 
Simulators and exhibit fabrication 
Uniforms, ice skates and helmets 
Work ln progress 

Balance 
December 31, Amortization 

2022 expense 

$ 2,866,828 $ 
2,354,463 
3,339,835 
1,346,419 
1,051,070 

173,470 
2.773,096 

65,729 
364,938 

374,296 
293,467 
266,806 
132,199 
187,918 

17,030 
438,063 

19,073 

Balance 
December 31, 

Disposals 2023 

$ (17,213) $ 3,223,911 
2,647,930 
3,606,641 
1,478,618 
1,238,988 

190,500 
3,211,159 

65,729 
384,011 

$ 14,335,848 $ 1,728,852 $ (17,213) $ 16,047,487 

2023 2022 
Net book Net book 

value value 

2,235,045 $ 1,516,462 
673,607 771,212 
263,680 356,976 
202,141 188,828 

9,579,330 4,829,870 
28,157 22,072 

1,466,915 1,111,210 
33,702 34,289 

100,000 5,496,888 

14,582,577 14,327,807 

The Oval land and building complex and its major equipment components are the property of the 
City and are not recorded in these financial statements. 

There was no write-down of tangible capital assets during the year (2022 • nll). 

10. Accumulated surplus: 

Accumulated surplus is comprised of: 
Share capital 
Capital reserve 
Other reserves/provisions 
Operating surplus 
Invested in tangible capital assets 

2023 

1 
11,586,385 

774,472 
607,259 

8,503,469 

2022 

1 
9,846,053 
1,166,472 

610,286 
7,871,999 

$ 21,471,586 $ 19,494,811 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

11. Financial risk management: 

The Corporation has exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments: credit 
risk, market risk, and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors ensures that the Corporation has 
identified its major risks and ensures that lhe management monitors and controls them. 

(a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a counterparty to a financial 
instrument falls to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from certain 
financial assets held by the Corporation consisting of cash, account receivables, and 
investments. The Corporation limits its credit risk by holding its cash and investments with 
federally regulated, credit worthy financial institutions. The Corporation assesses these 
financial assets on a continuous basis for any amounts that are not collectible or realizable. 

lt is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant credit risk from ils 
financial instruments. 

(bl Market and interest rate risk: 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the 
Corporation's Income. The objective of market risk management is to control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return of risk. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rate. 

It is management's opinion that the Corporation ls not exposed to significant market or interest 
rate risk from its financial instruments. 

{c) Uquldityrisk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they come due. The Corporation manages liquidity risks by continually monitoring actual and 
forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing and financing activities to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its !iabilitles when 
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Corporation's reputation. 

It is management's opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant liquidity risk. 

There have been no changes in risk disclosures since 2022. 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31. 2023 

12. Related party transactions: 

(a) City of Richmond: 

The Corporation leases the Oval from the City for $1 annually, 

In 2023, nil {2022. $24,663) of general and administration and salaries and benefits 
expenses were charged to the Corporation for the provision of City staff lime. 

The Corporation is party to the Richmond Oval Agreement (the ~Agreement") with the City, 
which had an effective date of July 1, 2008. The Agreement established the terms and 
conditions of the relationship between the City and the Corporation, including any financial 
support, 

During 2023, the Corporation received a contribution from the City of $3,903,713 
(2022. $3,754,292) (note 17). 

(b) Sport Hosting Function: 

Effective July 1, 2011, the Sport Hosting function of the City was transferred to the Corporation, 
This function Is fully funded by the hotel tax. In 2023, $400,000 {2022. $399,996) was 
transferred from the City to the Corporation as funding for the operations of that department. 
As at December 31, 2023, $664,897 (2022. $817,964) has been included in deferred revenue 
(note B) and during 2023, $553,067 (2022 - $336,255) was recognized in memberships, 
admissions, and programs revenue on the statement of operations relating to Sport Hosting. 

In previous years, the Corporation received hotel tax funding restricted for the purpose of 
purchasing tangible capital assets related to the Richmond Olympic Experience project. ln 
order to retain the funding received in prior years, the Corporation must maintain and operate 
the tangible capital assets purchased with these funds over the life of the tangible capital 
assets. On an annual basis, the Corporation must provide a report to the City as to the use of 
the funds and the maintenance and operation of these tangible capital assets. As at year-end, 
$3,526,038 (2022. $3,638,995) of the funds restricted for the purchase of tangible capital 
assets for the Richmond Olympic Experience remains in deferred revenue and the revenue 
will be recognized over the life of the underlying assets, 

13. Pension plan: 

The Corporation and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed 
pension plan). The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible 
for administering the Plan, including Investment of assets and administration of benefits, The Plan 
is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. 
As at December 31, 2022, the Plan has about 241,000 active members and approximately 
124,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 43,000 contributors from local 
governments. 

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

13. Pension plan (continued): 

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the Plan 
and adequacy of Plan funding, The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and 
member contribution rate to fund the Plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on 
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the !ong-term rate of member and employer 
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the Plan. This rate is then 
adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any funding deficit. 

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as of December 31, 2021, indicated a 
$3,761,00o.ooo funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The next 
valuation will be as at December 31, 2024, with results available in 2025. 

Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year {defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is 
because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate, 
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for a!!ocaling the obligation, assets and cost to 
individual employers participating in the Plan. 

The Corporation paid $630,578 (2022 $553,353) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 
2023. 

14, Economic dependence: 

The Corporation is economically dependent on receiving funding from GOT {note 6) and the City 
{note 12). 

15. Contractual rights: 

Contractual rights are the right to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that 
will result in revenues and assets in the future and are nol yet recorded ln the financial statements. 
The Corporation has contractual rights to receive sponsorship revenue and lease revenue over the 
next four years in the following total amounts: 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

526,065 
513,424 
476,457 
378,054 

In addition, the Corporation receives funding from the City (note 12(a)) and from the GOT 
(note6). 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

16. Other revenue: 

Other revenue consists primarily of sponsorship revenue, leasing revenue, parking fees, and 
interest income. 

17. Government transfers: 

Government transfers are received for operating and capital activities. During 2023, the 
Corporation received an operating transfer of $3,903,713 (2022 - $3,754,292) (note 12(a)) and 
capita! transfers of $396,399 (2022 - $1,353,601). The capital transfers are included in deferred 
revenue. 

18, Comparative figures: 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement 
presentation adopted for the current year. These reclassifications do not Impact the annual 
surplus reported in the prior period or net financial assets. 
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